Cape Light Compact JPE
Executive Committee &
Governing Board Meeting

DATE: Wednesday, May 14, 2025

LOCATION: Cape Light Compact Offices — Martha’s Vineyard Conference Room
261 Whites Path, Unit 4, South Yarmouth

TIME: 2:00 — 4:30 p.m.

Note: The meeting will be held as a hybrid meeting (in-person and through remote participation) pursuant to St. 2025, c. 2,
which extends the temporary provisions pertaining to remote meetings of public bodies under the Open Meeting Law to June
30, 2027. Members of the Public can join in by audio and follow along with Meeting Materials, see the information below,

Written

public comments should be submitted to Maggie Downey, Compact Administrater, at

mdownevi@ capelightcompact.org by 2:00 PM on Tuesday, May 13, 2025, and should follow the public comment protocol
below. Written public comments received after the May 13" deadline will be distributed prior o the Compact’s next Board

meeting

Telephone dial-in: +1 (646) 558-8656

Meetin

g ID: 841-5403-3580

Passcode: 092764

AGENDA

Public Comment
Approval of April 9, 2025, Open Session Minutes
Chairman’s Report, Martin Culik

Overview of the Compact’s April 30, 2025, Compliance Filing and Energy Efficiency Surcharge Filing
for the Three-Year Energy Efficiency Plan for 2025-2027 (DPU 24-146), Margaret Song

Results of Power Supply Marketing Initiative, Mariel Marchand

Presentation on Electric Heat Pump Rate: DPU 25-08 and DPU 25-55. Potential Vote to Adopt
Consumer Advocacy Worksheet, Maggie Downey

Administrator’s Report, Maggie Downey
a. Update on Website
b. Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative Strategic Planning Session
c. Revised MA 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary

Board Member Update (Reserved for Updates on Member Activities the Chair Did Not Reasonably
Anticipate Would be Discussed — No Voting)



Cape Light Compact Public Comment Protocols
for Governing Board Meeting
Cape Light Compact Public Comment Protocols
for Governing Board Meeting
{June 2023)

The Cape Light Compact Governing Board has adopted the following protocols to assist the public in effective
participation in its Governing Board meetings, where some Board Members, staff and members of the
public may be participating remotely:

1.

Members of the public are welcome to address the Compact Board during the public comment
section of the meeting or in writing.

Members of the public addressing the Compact Board at the meeting must state their name, and if
appropriate the name of the organization the person is representing. Oral comments must be
limited to three minutes.

Members of the public may also submit written comments. Written comments shall be submitted
in writing to the Compact Administrator, Maggie Downey, at mdowney(@capelightcompact.org by
2 p.m. on the Tuesday before a scheduled Compact Governing Board meeting ( or such other time
as may be established by the Compact Administrator). Written comments must include a person’s
name and, if appropriate, the name of the organization the person is representing. Public comments
received after the deadline will be distributed prior to the Compact’s next Board meeting.

Members of the public addressing the Compact Board may not use fighting words, slander,
unreasonably loud or repetitive speech, or speech so disruptive of the Compact Board meeting that the
deliberative process is substantially interrupted or impaired. Speakers may not disrupt others. Speech
must be peaceable and orderly.

All written public comments submitted in advance consistent with these protocols shall be included
in the Compact’s Board meeting packet.

Board members and staff cannot respond to public comments for topics not on the current agenda
during the Board meeting. The Cape Light Compact Board may respond to comments either by putting

them on the agenda of a subsequent meeting or by requesting the administrator or staff to respond to the
comment.

Copies of the Board meeting packet will generally be made available to members of the public in
advance of the meeting at the Cape Light Compact JPE's website at www.capelightcompact.org
Documents exempt from disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Law or protected by the
attorney-client privilege shall not beincluded.



Draft Minutes subject to correction, additions and Committee/Board Approval

Cape Light Compact JPE
Governing Board
Meeting Minutes

Wednesday, April 9, 2025

The Cape Light Compact JPE Board of Directors met on Wednesday, April 9, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. The meeting
was held as a hybrid meeting (in-person and through remote participation) through a Zoom videoconference for
members of the Board with audio call-in available for members of the public, pursuant to St. 2025, ¢. 2, which,

among other things, extends the temporary provisions pertaining to remote meetings of public bodies under the
Open Meeting Law to June 30, 2027.

Participating In-Person Were:

S o

David Anthony, Secretary/Executive Committee, Barnstable
Robert Schofield, Executive Committee, Bourne

Brad Crowell, Dennis

Tom McNellis, Eastham

Nathaniel Mayo, Provincetown

Bob Higgins-Steele, Truro Alternate

Participating Remotely Were:

1.

00N WAL

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

Bill Doherty, Bourne Alternate

Colin Odell, Executive Committee, Brewster
Brian Miner, Chatham

Tristan Israel, Dukes County

Alan Strahler, Edgartown

Scott Mueller, Falmouth

Valerie Bell, Harwich

Wayne Taylor, Mashpee

Martin Culik, Chair/Executive Committee, Orleans
David Jacobson, Orleans Alternate

Steve Tucker, Sandwich Alternate

Suzanne Ryan-Ishkanian, Wellfleet

Nicola Blake, Executive Committee, West Tisbury
Mike Duffy, Yarmouth

Absent Were:

S

Forrest Filler, Aquinnah

Peter Meleney, Oak Bluffs

Leanne Drake, Sandwich

Russ Hartenstine, Tisbury

Jarrod Cabral, Truro

Joyce Flynn, Vice Chair/Executive Committee, Yarmouth

Legal Counsel Participating Remotely:
Audrey Eidelman Kiernan, Esq., KO Law, P.C.

Erin O’

Toole, Esq., KO Law, P.C.



Draft Minutes subject to correction, additions and Committee/Board Approval

Staff Participation In-Person:
Jason Bertrand, Marketing & Communications Coordinator

Kim Grant, Town Energy Coordinator
Maggie Downey, Chief Administrative Officer

Staff Participating Remotely:

Angela Hurwitz, Senior IT Services & Data Management Analyst
Briana Kane, Implementation Manager

Dan Schell, Senior Analyst - Retail and Demand Response
David Botelho, Senior IT Services & Data Management Analyst
David Maclellan, Senior Analyst

Kate Coleman, Outreach Specialist

Lindsay Henderson, Senior Analyst — Small Business

Margaret Song, Energy Efficiency Strategy and Policy Manager
Mariel Marchand, Power Supply Planner

Meredith Miller, Senior Analyst — Income Eligible

Phil Moffitt, Chief Financial Officer

Public Participants:
None.

Martin Culik called the meeting to order at 2:04PM.
Public Comment:

No written comments were received in advance of the meeting and no members of the public were present for
public comment.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
The Board considered the March 12, 2025, Open Session Meeting Minutes.

Robert Schofield moved the Board to accept the minutes and to release them, seconded by Nate Mayo.

David Anthony Barnstable Yes
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes
Colin Odell Brewster Yes
Brian Miner Chatham Yes
Brad Crowell Dennis Yes
Tom McNellis Eastham Yes
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes
Scott Mueller Falmouth Yes
Wayne Taylor Mashpee Yes
Martin Culik Orleans Yes
Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes
Bob Higgins-Steele Truro Yes
Suzanne Ryan-Ishkanian Wellfleet Yes
Nicola Blake West Tisbury Yes




Draft Minutes subject to correction, additions and Committee/Board Approval

[ Mike | Dufty | Yarmouth [ Yes |

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0)

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT, MARTIN CULIK:

1. Continued Discussion on Succession Planning for Administrator’s Position

Martin Culik stated that he had a meeting with Maggie Downey and Counsel to continue the discussion on
succession planning. He stated that there seems to be a lot of uncertainty right now about state policies and their
potential impacts on the Compact. He stated that Counsel said there is currently legislation being drafted
regarding changes at Mass Save. He stated that the Board will continue the discussion at the May meeting
assuming the legislation is out by then. It may impact the Administrator hiring discussion and the role of the
Board in future Energy Efficiency Plans.

2. Update on Proposed Energy Affordability Legislation

Maggie Downey stated that last month the Program Administrators (PAs), including the Compact, were given
an overview by Undersecretary Antos of the Governor’s proposed energy affordability legislation. She stated
the meeting was a follow up to the “Building Decarbonization Clearinghouse” report prepared by the Vermont
Energy Investment Corporation (VEIC) on behalf of the Massachusetts Executive Office of Energy and
Environmental Affairs (EEA). The VEIC report identified options regarding the future of Mass Save and the
Governor’s proposed legislation addresses one of the Mass Save options. She stated that there are two
recommendations in the draft VEIC report. One is to have Mass Save be administered by the state, taking away
the role of the PAs/Compact, and the second is that Mass Save is administered by the electric PAs and
municipal aggregators with certified energy plans, and no natural gas PAs. She stated that there has not been a
final VEIC report yet. She stated that to the best of her knowledge, the VEIC recommendation, removing the
gas PAs from administering Mass Save, is being translated into the proposed Governor’s legislation. The
legislation has not been finalized and has not been shared publicly. She stated that the biggest takeaway for her
from the meeting with Undersecretary Antos is the change in the Compact’s local control and local
development of the Energy Efficiency Plan. She stated that if the change was passed into law the effective date
is likely to be in the 2028-2030 Plan.

Nate Mayo asked if Maggie Downey got the sense that there was a mechanism potentially built in that the
Compact could initiate unique offerings like Cape & Vineyard Electrification Offering (CVEQ). Maggie
Downey stated that she has not seen the proposed legislation, but assumed there would be the ability to propose
unique offerings. She stated that most likely the Compact would have to propose it to the Energy Efficiency
Advisory Council (EEAC) as we do now. Nate Mayo suggested Board members send any questions they might
have on this issue after the Board Meeting to Maggie.. Maggie stated that it is a win, as the Compact and
electric PAs would be administering the Mass Save energy efficiency programs under the proposed legislation.

Audrey Eidelman Kiernan stated that we won't know until we see the actual legislation, but if you recall, we've
had several issues over the past couple of Energy Efficiency Plans being able to directly serve the customers on
the Cape that heat their homes with natural gas. She stated that this proposal, as we heard from the
Undersecretary, would mean that the Compact can once again serve those customers. David Anthony asked if
there was someone on the committee that is an ally that we can funnel concerns through. Maggie Downey
answered yes, Senator Fernandes is on the Telecommunications, Utilities and Energy committee, which is
where the legislation will be discussed.



Draft Minutes subject to correction, additions and Committee/Board Approval

Audrey Eidelman Kiernan stated that whatever we see in the initial legislation does not mean that it will be the
be all end all version that comes out of the legislature. She stated there is a lot of room for things to happen
during the hearing process. She stated that we should be getting the initial legislation any day now and if it is to
become law during this session of the legislature, the bill will need to be finalized and sent to the Governor by
end of July 2026.

Tristan Israel, Valerie Bell, and Steve Tucker joined the meeting at 2:12PM.,

PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ON THE COMPACT’S APRIL 30, 2025, COMPLIANCE FILING FOR THE THREE-
YEAR ENERGY EFFICIENCY PLAN FOR 2025-2027 (DPU 24-146), MARGARET SONG:

Margaret Song reviewed the DPU Order: Preliminary Residential Budget Cuts PowerPoint. She stated that the
residential energy efficiency budget needs to be reduced by $500 million; proportionate by electric and gas PA
and the energy efficiency surcharge (EES) year over year change is to be no more than a 15% increase. She
stated that the Compact budget reduction is $24,305,069 which is about $8.1 a year. She stated that the
compliance filing is due on April 30, 2025.

Margaret Song stated that when looking for areas to reduce the budget the guiding principles were to maintain
program design, recalibrate for recent projects in the pipeline, and reduce non-energy saving budgets wherever
possible.

Margaret Song reviewed the budget reductions. She stated that the Compact, and the other PAs, will be 1)
eliminating residential Home Energy Scorecards, 2) reducing statewide marketing by 10%, 3) reducing
residential evaluation budgets by 10%, 4) reducing language access costs by 10%, 5) increase for statewide call
center in 2027, 6) reducing standard heat pump turnkey projects in 2027, and 7) reducing budgets for the
prescriptive heat pump pool and Heat loan by 30%. She stated that the budget cuts result in a 16% reduction in
costs and a 21% greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction. She stated that including low income and commercial &
industrial sectors, the cost and avoided carbon dioxide (CO2e) {metric tons) went from $2,986 to $2,983.

Tom McNellis stated that we have found the residential turnkey projects to be very valuable for customers. He
asked about how much it is being reduced. Margaret Song stated that we are cutting a lot. She stated that we
would basically only have funds for 30 projects and the Compact had a budget for over 1,000, but that thousand
might have been optimistic. Tom McNellis stated that he is wondering if there is some alternative where maybe
there is not as much customer handholding but at least providing some level of backstop to help customers
through the next steps. Margaret Song stated absolutely. She stated that there are decarbonization assessments
that are still in the works, and we also offer energy efficiency coaching.

Martin Culik asked if the budget reductions outlined are kind of a template from the state group that all PAs are
following. Margaret Song answered yes. She stated that all of these are statewide adjustments. Some of the PAs
are making further reductions to get to their proportionate budget.

Margaret Song reviewed the GHG reductions. She stated that these tables show the differences from the
compliance filing in December to the modeled reductions today.

Margaret Song reviewed the upcoming meetings and deadlines. She stated that April 14, 2025, is the deadline
for parties to submit opposition to the utility PAs Joint Motion for Reconsideration and Clarification regarding
certain performance incentive issues associated with the electrification pool. The Compact is not a party to this
Motion given that this affects performance incentives. She stated that on April 16, 2025, there is an Energy



Draft Minutes subject to correction, additions and Committee/Board Approval

Efficiency Advisory Council (EEAC) meeting and on April 17, 2028, the Department of Public Utilities (DPU)
is having a technical session on EES.

PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED REVISIONS TO COMPACT TOWN REPORTS, KIM GRANT:

Kim Grant reviewed the Data Project PowerPoint. She stated that the Compact’s energy efficiency activity
report was created over 19 years ago to provide data on program participation and energy savings by town.
These monthly reports are posted to the Compact’s website and a quarterly report is sent to the towns. She
stated that the Compact is looking to update the report and replace it with a dashboard that will be town specific
and include data that is useful to the Board and stakeholders.

Kim Grant reviewed the current report. She reviewed the data protection requirements. She stated that the
Department of Public Utilities (DPU) privacy laws, outlined in 201 CMR 17.00, require the Compact to protect
the personal information on Massachusetts residents. She stated that DPU 20-80-D reiterated limited sharing of
data for express purposes and focused on customer data protection.

Kim Grant stated that a survey is going to be sent out to the Board. She reviewed the questions and then showed
an example of what the dashboard would look like. She stated the survey will go out on Friday, April 10" from
her email and there will be a link to SurveyMonkey. She asked that the Board send responses back to her by
Friday, April 25", David Anthony asked if the survey was going to be sent out to Town Mangers as well. Kim
Grant answered yes, the survey will be sent to the Town Managers.

UPDATE ON REVISIONS TO THE COMPACT’S WEBSITE, JASON BERTRAND:

Jason Bertrand reviewed portions of the Compact’s new website. He stated that he was not quite ready to show
the Board the website in full for their review, but hoping to send it out for edits and comments before the May
Board Meeting.

Jason Bertrand stated that his goal was to provide ways to make it easier for customers to find the information
they are looking for. One way of doing that is putting a search bar front and center on the home page. Also,
making tags to pages. For example, many people may be searching for mini splits instead of heat pumps, but we
don't have mini split written anywhere on the website. So, by putting mini splits into the search bar, it will get
them to the right place. He stated that there is also a “Getting Started” button that will bring customers to a new
page with a few questions to answer. He stated once they answer those questions it will then bring them to
another page with a list of all the different incentives/rebates they may qualify for.

Dan Schell stated that there is a computer-generated translation button on the top right, but when the website is
finalized, the website will be translated into Portugues and Spanish by a real person as well. Jason Bertrand
stated that he is hoping to launch the new website in May or June.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:

1. Mass Save Letter to State Auditor
Maggie Downey stated that there is a letter to the state auditor in the Board Packet. She stated that the reason it
was sent is because the state auditor expressed concern that income eligible customers were not being well

served through Mass Save. She stated that the auditor thought that income eligible customers were paying into
the programs and not getting anything out of them; however, it is the complete opposite, and the data shows



Draft Minutes subject to correction, additions and Committee/Board Approval

income eligible customers are receiving more in services than they have been contributing. She stated that she
just wanted to make sure the Board was aware that the letter was sent.

ADJOURNMENT:

Motion to adjourn was made at 3:30PM moved by Robert Schofield, seconded by Brad Crowell.

Motion carried in the affirmative (18-0-0)

Respectfully submitted,

Melissa Allard

LiST OF DOCUMENTS AND EXHIBITS:

e Meeting Notice/Agenda
e March 12, 2025, Draft Open Session Meeting Minutes

¢ DPU Order: Preliminary Residential Budget Cuts PowerPoint
¢ Data Project PowerPoint

David Anthony Barnstable Yes |
Robert Schofield Bourne Yes |
Colin Odell Brewster Yes

Brian Miner Chatham Yes

Brad Crowell Dennis Yes

Tristan Israel Dukes County Yes

Tom McNellis Eastham Yes Sl
Alan Strahler Edgartown Yes

Scott Mueller Falmouth Yes

Valerie Bell Harwich Yes

Wayne Taylor Mashpee Yes

Martin Culik Orleans Yes

Nate Mayo Provincetown Yes N .
Steve Tucker Sandwich Yes

Bob Higgins-Steele Truro Yes

Suzanne Ryan-Ishkanian Wellfleet Yes

Nicola Blake West Tisbury | Yes

Mike Duffy Yarmouth Yes




2025-2027 Energy Efficiency Plan

Your Trusted, Local Margaret Song, Strategy and Policy Manager

Energy Resource

May 14, 2025

mass save




Compliance Filing Status

= @ =]
-
COMPACT MET ITS REQUIRED FILED BY DEADLINE ON APRIL 30, ALSO FILED ON APRIL 30, 2025 FOR
RESIDENTIAL BUDGET REDUCTIONS 2025 IN DPU 24-146 (SAME DOCKET THE 2025 ENERGY EFFICIENCY
(ACTUAL REDUCTION =$25,417,838) FOR 2025-2027 PLAN} SURCHARGE (EES) IN DPU 25-52 |0\, of




Table D.1: 2025 -2027 Sector Level Budgets

15% year over year requirement

Income

Sector 2025 budget 2026 budget 2027 budget
Residential $48.772.941 $46.965.426 $47.260.536
% Growth — -3.7% 0.6%
Residential

Low Income S24.113.287 $25.632.604 $28.595.270
% Growth — Low 6.3% 11.6%

Commercial & $15.326472 $16.201.620 $17.312.812
Industrial
% Growth — C&I 3.7% 6.9%




Timeline for Compliance Filing

4( 5/7 — Comments from Parties due

» LEAN — reserve right to reply but no comments

e Conservation Law Foundation — take issue with moderate-income gas-to-electric heat
pumps

e Attorney General’s Office — Concerns around cost overruns but no other statewide
comment. Opposes Eversource gas (in former Columbia Gas territory’s) budget request

~

4[ 5/13 — Reply comments due
—{ Order date = unknown




Energy Efficiency Surcharge (EES) in cents/kWh

Jan - June |July -Dec

approved |approved |approved |proposed
(in 10/24) | (in filing)

Residential 2.091 3.898 5.468 3.273

Income-
Eligible

Commercial 1.179 1.558 3.223 2.416




Illustrative Bill Impacts — R1 (Res.}

Monthly 2025 In Effect 2025 Proposed Total Bill Impact
%
kWh Delivery Supplier Total Delivery Supplier Total Change Change
100 $31.73 $12.02 54375 $29.53 $12.02 $41.55 (52.20) -5.0%
200 $53.46 $24.05 $77.51 $49.07 $24.05 $73.12 (54.39) -5.7%

300 $75.19 $36.07 $111.26 $68.60 $36.07 $104.67 (56.59) -5.9%
400 §96.92 5$48.10 $145.02 $88.14 $48.10 5$136.24 (58.78) -6.1%
500 $118.65 5$60.12 $178.77 $107.67 $60.12 $167.79  (510.98) -6.1%
600 $140.37 $72.14 S$212.51 $127.20 $72.14 $199.34  (513.17) -6.2%
700 $162.10 $84.17 $246.27 $146.74 $84.17 523091  ($15.36) -6.2%
800 $183.83 $96.19 $280.02 $166.27 $96.19 $262.46  ($17.56) -6.3%
900 $205.56 $108.22 $313.78 $185.81 $108.22 $294.03  ($19.75) -6.3%
1,000 $227.29 $120.24 $347.53 $205.34 $120.24 $325.58  (521.95) -6.3%
1,250 $281.61 $150.30 $431.91 $254.18 $150.30 5404.48  ($27.43) -6.4%
1,500 $335.94 $180.36 $516.30 $303.01 $180.36 $483.37 (53293} -6.4%
2,000 $444.58 $240.48 $685.06 $400.68 $240.48 $641.16  (543.90) -6.4%
530 $125.16 $63.73  $188.89 $113.53 $63.73 S$177.26  ($11.63) -6.2%




IHlustrative Bill Impacts — R2 (Res.

Assistance)

2025 In Effect

Monthly

kWh
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900
1,000
1,250
1,500
2,000

Delivery Supplier Total
$18.40 $6.97 $25.37
$31.01 $13.95 $44.96
$43.61 $20.92 $64.53
$56.21 $27.90 $84.11
$68.81 $34.87 $103.68
$81.42 $41.84 5123.26
$94.02 S48.82 $142.84

$106.62 $55.79 $162.41

$119.23 S$62.77 $182.00
$131.83 $69.74  $201.57
$163.34 $87.17 $250.51
$194.84 $104.61 $299.45
$257.86 $139.48 $397.34

2025 Proposed

Delivery Supplier

$17.13
$28.46
$39.79
$51.12
$62.45
$73.78
$85.11
$96.44
$107.77
$119.10
$147.42
$175.75
$232.39

$6.97
$13.95
$20.92
$27.90
$34.87
$41.84
$48.82
$55.79
$62.77
$69.74
$87.17
$104.61
$139.48

Total
$24.10
$42.41
$60.71
$79.02
$97.32
$115.62
$133.93
$152.23
$170.54
$188.84
$234.59
$280.36
$371.87

Total Bill Impact

%

Change Change
(51.27) -5.0%
(52.55) -5.7%
(53.82) -5.9%
{$5.09) -6.1%
{56.36) -6.1%
($7.64) -6.2%
(58.91) -6.2%
(510.18) -6.3%
(511.46) -6.3%
(512.73) -6.3%
(515.92) -6.4%
(519.09) -6.4%
(525.47) -6.4%

|

Cape Light
Compact I



Illustrative Bill Impacts — small C&l

Monthly 2025 In Effect 2025 Proposed Total Bill Impact

%
kWh Delivery Supplier Total Delivery Supplier Total Change Change
5 $15.79  $0.66 $16.45 $15.75 $0.66 $16.41 (50.04) -0.2%
30 $19.76  $3.93 $23.69 $19.52 $3.93 $23.45 (50.24) -1.0%
80 $27.70 $10.48 $38.18 $27.06 $10.48 $37.54 {50.64) -1.7%
150 $38.82 $19.65 $58.47 $37.61  $19.65 $57.26 (s1.21) -2.1%
275 $58.67 $36.03 $94.70 $56.45 $36.03 $92.48 (52.22) -2.3%
500 $94.41 $65.51  $159.92 $90.37 $65.51  $155.88 (54.04) -2.5%
750 $134.11 $98.27 $232.38 $128.06 $98.27  $226.33 (56.05) -2.6%
1,250 $213.51 §$163.78 $377.29 $203.43 $163.78 $367.21  (510.08) -2.7%
2,500 $412.03 $327.55 $739.58 $391.85 $327.55 $719.40 ($20.18) -2.7%
10,000 $1,603.1051,310.20 $2,913.30 $1,522.40 $1,310.20 $2,832.60 ($80.70) -2.8%

e

1
IF?‘




Cape Light [

Compact

Questions? 35




Cape Light EJ Power Supply Test

Compact

Mailing Update

Your Trusted, Local Energy Resource

Cape Light Compact Governing Board
May 14, 2025




Test Malling Recap

Based on direction from the Board:
Test Mailing — 1,000 Pieces

« 500 Basic Service and 500 Competitive Supply customers

s Total Cost: $1,050.95

LOWER YOUR
ELECTRIC
SUPPLY RATE!

Cape Light Compact
Residential Electric
Rates Starting at
12.024 cents/kWh

Cape Light Compact 15 an award-winning snergy
services organization operated by the 2t towns on
Cape Cod and Martha’s vineyard and Dukes
ounty with a local office In South yYarmouth

Lape 5 e Bowat & Prograr
ittt s e oy s eae. YOUR TRUSTED,
wath
LOCAL ENERGY
Compact Supply Rate {Jan. - July 25} RESOU RCE

12.024 cents/kWh*
APE LICHT COMPA =)
Eversource Basic Service Supply Rate C':sl E'VH.TES QAT;-E LCNTF: &
{Feb. - July 25] S YARMOUTH, MA 02664
13347 cents/kWh

W@ yod CANNOT QUATATIAS IOWSRT rates ¢3¢
e The COMDAact's rasiiantial Price has baen
crves Thhan Batet Sennce 2eace Tuns 2071

an  TO sign up for the Compact's supply
B please call 1-800-391-9192 or visit

¥ CapelLightCompactorg/

M Power-Supply

ey |

Cape Light
Compact |
!



Mailing Results & Call Volumes

NextEra call center asked all customers calling to enroll if they received
a postcard from the Compact

Number of customers who indicated that they received a postcard: O
Number of customer auto-enrollments in April: 1,352
Number of customer opt-ins in April: 9

NextEra Call Center Call Volumes (2024-present)

-E
CLC 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 25 25 25
Total

Calls 199

Cape Light Q'l




Options Moving Forward

« No additional power supply marketing

o Reminder that Compact's marketing strategy already includes
power supply marketing (radio, social media, rate change ads in
local papers, press release)

o The Compact is serving approximately 70% of customers in
service territory

« Additional mailings (not recommmended by staff)
o All Basic Service Customers - 16,633 Pieces; $9,282.72
o All Competitive Supply Customers - 30,122 Pieces; $15,720.46




7\ KO
LAW, P.C.

D.P.U. 25-08 and D.P.U. 25-55

SEASONAL HEAT PUMP RATE DESIGN

May 14, 2025



D.P.U. 25-08 and 25-55
Background on Interrelated Proceedings

Interagency Rates Working Group (“IRWG”) has been studying rate designs
to align with the Commonwealth’s decarbonization goals and energy

affordability concerns.

>

>

December 2024: IRWG issued Near Term Rate Strategy Recommendations, including
optional seasonal heat pump rate

January 31, 2025: DOER Petition filed with the DPU requesting a heat pump rate
investigation

March 21, 2025: DPU opened investigation on DOER’s Petition and directed
Eversource to propose a heat pump rate

April 17, 2025: Eversource filed its proposed heat pump rate in D.P.U. 25-55

March 21 and May 5, 2025: DPU Notices with deadlines for participation



CLC CONCERNS

Power Supply

» Heat pump rate design: revenue neutral; reduce energy
burden

» Time-varying rates

Energy Efficiency
» Enrolling customers onto heat pump rate
» Marketing and outreach

Seeking approval of the consumer advocacy worksheet
(in packet) based on these shared costs.




CLC PARTICIPATION

» D.P.U. 25-08
File Public Comment in D.P.U. 25-08 (6/2)

| » D.P.U. 25-55
File Petition to Intervene as Limited Participant (5/20)

File Public Comment (6/12)




NEXT STEPS

» Consumer Advocacy Worksheet Approval

» Dockets - participation as outlined




—
Aquinnah
Barnstable

Bourne
Brewster
Chatham
Chilmark.

Dennis

Dukes
County

Eastham
Edgartown
Falmouth
Harwich
Mashpee
Oak Bluffs
Orleans
Provincetown
Sandwich
Tisbury
Truro
Wellfleet
West Tisbury

Yarmouth

Agenda Action Request

Cape Light Compact
Meeting Date: 5/14/25

Electric Heat Pump Rate (DPU 25-08 and DPU 25-55)

REQUESTED BY: Maggie Downey

Consumer Advocacy Worksheet.

Proposed Motion(s)

I move the Board vote to authorize the Compact’s participation in D.P.U. 25-08 and 25-55,
adopt the Consumer Advocacy Worksheet for D.P.U. 25-08 and 25-55 and allocate costs
between the Compact’s energy efficiency and operating budgets as set forth in the

| The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or
appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may be
necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.

Additional Information

n March 21, 2025, the Departm ' iliti he “Department” or “DPU") i,
and Order Opening Inquiry in D.P.U. 25-08 on a Petition by the Department of Energv Resources
(“DOER”) regarding an optional seasonal heat pump rate. DOER requested that the Department
investigate whether to direct all of the electric distribution companies (“EDCs") in the
Commonwealth to offer such a rate as recommended by the Near-Term Rate Strategy

e h ragency Rates Worki . The Department has r
lic nfune 2, 2025

In D.P.U. 25.08, the DPU dir Eversour r e a seasonal heat pump rate in D.P.U. 25-
55, which Eversource filed on April 17 _2025. Petitions to intervene in D.P.{J. 25-55 are due May
20, 2025, with public comment due on June 12, 2025,

Record of Board Action

Motion by: Second by: # Aye | # Nay # Abstain Disposition




D.P.U. 25-08 and D.P.U. 25-55 Board Approved

Consumer Advocacy Allocation Worksheet

Parties involved:

On March 21, 2025, the Department of Public Utilities (the “Department” or “DPU”) issued a
Vote and Order Opening Inquiry in D.P.U. 25-08 on a Petition by the Department of Energy
Resources (“DOER™) regarding an optional seasonal heat pump rate. DOER requested that the
Department investigate whether to direct all of the electric distribution companies (“EDCs”) in
the Commonwealth to offer such a rate as recommended after a rate design study by the
Interagency Rates Working Group (“IRWG”). Accordingly, all of the EDCs will presumably
participate in that proceeding. In that Vote and Order, the Department directed Eversource to
file a proposal for a seasonal heat pump in D.P.U. 25-55 for the 2025-26 heating season.
Accordingly, Eversource is a party to that proceeding, and National Grid typically files for

limited participant status in Eversource proceedings. Otherwise, parties to the proceedings are
unknown as public comment and intervention dates have not yet occurred. The Compact intends
to seek limited participant status in D.P.U. 25-55.

Description of the Matter or Proceeding: On January 31, 2025, DOER filed a Petition requesting
that the DPU open an investigation on seasonal heat pump rates that will direct the EDCs to
establish an optional seasonal heat pump rate for residential customers with seasonally
differentiated volumetric delivery rates, inclusive of each Companies’ base distribution charge
and all reconciling mechanisms 1o reduce energy burden for customers transitioning to electric
heat pumps. The Petition builds on work by the IRWG that studied changes to electric rate
design to support electrification and to meet climate goals. The [IRWG found in its Near Term
Rate Strategy Report that heat pump-specific seasonal rate designs may offer a reduction in
winter volumetric charges in the near-term, while also limiting impacts on non-glectrifying
customers. National Grid and Unitil currently have approved heat pump rates, but the IRWG
recommended changes to those rates to ensure they do not become a barrier to electrification.

In the Vote and Order, the Department directed Eversource to file a proposed heat pump rate for
the 2025-26 heating season, while the Department conducts its general investigation into heat
pump rate design for the 2026-27 heating season (and beyond). On April 17, 2025, Eversource
filed its proposal as directed in D.P.U. 25-55, including its Implementation Plan for a seasonal
heat pump rate. The Department issued a notice with dates for public hearing (6/10), public
comment (6/12), and petitions to intervene (5/20).

Docket Number (if any):
D.P.U. 25-08 and D.P.U. 25-55



1.

Does this proceeding raise issues that may impact the Compact’s administration of its
three-year energy efficiency plan? If yes, please explain.

Yes. These proceedings will investigate an optional seasonal heat pump rate that could
encourage adoption of heat pumps in the Commonwealth to support electrification.
Existing rate design would result in electric customers that adopt heat pumps paying
higher electric bills that would serve as a disincentive to adoption. The Compact offers a

rebate for customers purchasing heat pumps. and the Three-Year Plan for 2025-2027
includes a continuation of those rebates. These efforts would be greatly supported by rate

design encouraging adoption of heat pumps. IRWG recommendations include that
customers adopting heat pumps through Mass Save should be seamlessly enrolled in the
proposed seasonal heat pump rate. Those recommendations refer to the EDCs in their
roles as Program Administrators, but the Compact wants to ensure that the Compact, in
its role as a Program Administrator, is also included in discussions. The DPU has noted
to the Program Administrators its heightened concern over ratepayer burdens related to
the administration of Mass Save and the Compact’s participation in this docket will better
inform the Compact as to the effect that a heat pump rate will have for the Compact’s
energy efficiency customers switching to {(or that already have switched to) heat pumps.
In addition, the EDCs will undertake educational outreach and marketing to their
customers on a heat pump rate. In D.P.U. 25-55, Eversource filed its Implementation
Plan that included outreach and marketing as well as tracking and reporting. The
Compact wants to ensure that customers in its service territory are included in those
efforts.

Does this proceeding raise issues regarding the general administration of energy
efficiency in Massachusetts? Are other Program Administrators (“PAs”) parties or
otherwise intervening? Other stakeholders? If yes, please explain.

Yes. For D.P.U. 25-08, as discussed above, the EDCs are directly involved as the
Petition requests that they be directed to implement an optional seasonal heat pump rate.
National Grid and Unitil currently have a heat pump rate, and the DPU directed
Eversource to file a proposal in D.P.U. 25-55. The IRWG recommendations directly
reference the EDCs as Program Administrators as well. Accordingly. the utility Program
Administrators are expected to participate. Otherwise, with public comment due in June,
it is too early in the proceeding to know what other stakeholders will participate. For
D.P.U. 25-55, Eversource is a party. Other stakeholders and parties will be identified
after the petition to intervene date (5/20) and after public comment (6/12).

Does this proceeding raise issues regarding the Compact’s administration of active
demand response programs/initiatives/measures? If yes, please explain.

[t is not clear if a seasonal heat pump rate would affect the Compact’s administration of
active demand response (“ADR™). The Department in its Vote and Order stated that it



“will continue to study appropriate heat-pump rate structures in the broader context of
time-varying rates.” Accordingly. approval of a heat pump rate now in addition to time-
varying rates eventually being enabled for municipal aggregations. could lead to future
ADR possibilities for the Compact.

Does this proceeding raise issues regarding the general administration of active demand
response in Massachusetts? Are other PAs parties or otherwise intervening? Other
stakeholders? If yes, please explain.

It is not clear if a seasonal heat pump rate would affect general administration of ADR in
the Commonwealth. The IRWG recommendations call for Mass Save to enroll

customers adopting heat pumps directly onto the seasonal heat pump rate and to engage
in marketing efforts regarding the rate. The Department in its Vote and Order stated that
it “will continue to study appropriate heat-pump rate structures in the broader context of
time-varying rates.” As noted above in #3, approval of a heat pump rate now in addition
to time-varying rates eventually being enabled, could lead to future ADR possibilities.

Does this proceeding concern the efficient utilization of energy in Massachusetts? Are
other Program Administrators parties or otherwise intervening? Other stakeholders? If
yes, please explain,

Yes, as discussed above, an optional seasonal heat pump rate would encourage adoption
of heat pumps in the Commonwealth to support electrification and would align with clean
energy goals. All utility Program Administrators are expected to participate in the

proceeding.

Describe the direct energy efficiency benefit resulting from the Compact’s participation
in this proceeding.

Any optional seasonal heat pump rate adopted in these proceedings will have a direct
impact on the Compact’s energy efficiency programs. A seasonal heat pump rate would
help to mitigate the potential for increased electric costs when customers switch to heat
pumps and may alleviate some of the energy burden of Compact energy efficiency
customers. Such a rate would likely result in more customers adopting heat pumps. The

Compact has an existing heat pump rebate, along with the joint proposal in the Three
Year Plan for 2025-27, that could be built upon if such a rate is approved, leading to

increased utilization of the Compact’s energy efficiency programs.

Is the described benefit quantifiable? If yes, please explain and provide any supporting
documentation.
Not at present, given that the proceeding is a Department investigation.




8. Will the Compact’s participation assist its planning for future energy efficiency plans
and/or programs?
Yes. The Compact’s participation here will inform future energy efficiency plans and/or
programs because having a seasonal heat pump rate may encourage customers to adopt
heat pumps. and such increased adoption is key to the Program Administrators satisfying
the greenhouse gas emissions reductions goals set for them by the Secretary of the Office
of Energy and Environmental Affairs.

9. Is the Compact’s participation in this proceeding a reasonable use of energy efficiency
ratepayer funds? Please explain.
Yes, the Compact’s participation in these dockets is a reasonable use of energy efficiency
ratepayer funds given how the Compact’s advocacy may improve energy efficiency
programs and how these proceedings may result in improvements to energy affordability
for the Compact’s customers. The Compact also seeks to ensure that its customers will
be included in the marketing and educational outreach and that the Compact itself will be
included in the necessary collaborative efforts with Eversource and other PAs.

10. Does this proceeding involve other non-energy efficiency issues? If yes, please explain.
Yes, these proceedings also implicate power supply concerns since a new optional
seasonal heat pump rate would be designed that may also affect energy affordability and
time-varying rates. The DPU specifically stated that the investigation will include “heat-
pump rate structures in the broader context of time-varying rates.” These proceedings
will also inform Eversource’s electric sector modernization plan — where rate design
considerations were deferred in D.P.U. 24-10.

11. What is the initial estimate of the percentage allocation between energy efficiency and
non-energy efficiency issues, as set forth in this worksheet?
The costs for these proceedings will be allocated based on the actual subject matter,
meaning that any work related to energy efficiency will be allocated as such and any
work related to non-energy efficiency will be allocated as such.

12. Discuss any other factors as may be appropriate.

It is important for the Compact to be involved in these proceedings as a first step in
designing rates to account for electrification and considering ways to balance customer

energy burdens while still meeting the Commonwealth’s climate goals.

13. To be completed at the conclusion of the proceeding/matter or every 12 months,
which ever comes first, a summary of the actual total costs associated with the
Compact’s participation and costs recovered through energy efficiency ratepayer funds



and operating funds. A brief narrative should accompany any readjustment to the
percentage allocation explaining the basis for the reallocation.

Please attach:
1. Initial Petition (not applicable, as this is a public comment proceeding)
2. Notice of Proceeding (attached)
3. Compact’s Petition to Intervene (not applicable, as this is a public comment proceeding)
4. Agreements with Expert Consultants, if any



ORG

01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001
01001

2025 Operating Budget Expense Report Thru 5.12.2025

OBJECT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

5110
5119
5170
5171
5173
5174
5175
5179
5181
5210
5270
5272
5290
5301
5302
5309
5313
5314
5315
5316
5318
5319
5320
5341
5343
5344
5345
5400
5430
5490
5710
5720
5730
5731
5732
5741
5789
5850
5854

OP-SALARIES

OP-SALARY RESERVE

DEFERRED COMP - EMPLOYER CONTR
OP-RETIREMENT

OP-GROUFP INSURANCE
OP-MEDICARE/OTHER TAXES
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
OP-MISC FRINGES

OP-OPEB LIABILITY

OP-UTILITIES

OP-MISC RENTALS

OP-RENT

OP-CUSTODIAL SERVICES
OP-ADVERTISING

OP-PUBLIC MARKETING SUPPORT
OP-IT SERVICES

OP-STAFF PROFESSIONAL DEVELOP
OP-PAYROLL SERVICES

OP-LEGAL SERVICES

QP-AUDIT FEES

OP-TREASURY SERVICES
OP-CONTRACTUAL
OP-OUTREACH/MARKETING CONTRACT
OP-POSTAGE

OP-TELEPHONES

OP-INTERNET

OP-PRINTING

OP-SUPPLIES

BUILDING RENOVATIONS
OP-FOOD SUPPLIES

OP-TRAVEL IN STATE

OP-TRAVEL OUT STATE
OP-SPONSORSHIPS
OP-SUBSCRIPTIONS

OP-SOFTWARE LICENSES
OP-INSURANCE

QOP-UNPAID BILLS

OP-MISC EQUIPMENT
OP-FINANCIAL SOFTWARE SYSTEM
Expense Total

ORIGINAL APPROP

s
s
3
5
$
5
3
3
3
S
5
)
3
3
$
s
$
5
5
s
3
5
s
$
5
$
s
$
s
s
s
$
5
s
s
s
$
$
5
S

Jan-March Mil Adder Revenue: $253,736.88

150,150.00
15,400.00
26,000.00
22,000.00
2,100.00
300.00
150.00
8,300.00
150.00
850.00
6,210.00
2,450.00
45,000.00
25,000.00
3,500.00
5,000.00
275.00
361,000.00
15,000.00
8,500.00
45,000.00
35,000.00
8,000.00
1,800.00
2,000.00
13,000.00
1,000.00
1,500.00
6,500.00
9,500.00
10,000.00
65,000.00
35,000.00
4,000.00
6,000.00
500.00
1,200.00
3,900.00

946,235.00

REVISED BUDGET YTD EXPENDED AVAILABLE BUDGET 9% USED

3
$
5
$
5
5
s
s
s
5
5
5
s
s
5
s
5
$
5
$
s
$
5
s
$
5
s
$
$
5
5
5
$
$
s
$
$
$
$
$

150,150.00
5,400.00
8,000.00
26,000.00
22,000.00
2,100.00
300.00
150.00
8,300.00
150.00
850.00
6,210.00
2,450.00
45,000.00
25,000.00
3,500.00
7,000.00
275.00
361,000.00
15,000.00
8,500.00
45,000.00
35,000.00
8,000.00
1,800.00
2,000.00
13,000.00
1,000.00
1,500.00
6,500.00
9,500.00
10,000.00
65,000.00
35,000.00
4,000.00
6,000.00
500.00
1,200.00
3,900.00

946,235.00

"m»rrrmrvrrn itV VBBLDLDVBOOVDVLVLEGUOVDLDULDVLDLVVLVEVLVYVLEWY VN VLN

61,555.58

1,965.60
9,635.63
908.93
141.04
10.50
47.53
133.98
2,415.00
649.25
18,019.31
5,500.25
895.08
6,726.15
73.65
116,604.46
10.08
1,630.10
11,427.00
4,539.83
2,591.85
513.78
307.63
4,297.39

2,960.20
2,712.34
2,924.49
22,576.77
16,262.50
6545.60

404.28

299,085.78

$
s
$
$
$
$
$
5
$
s
S
$
3
3
5
5
s
$
5
5
5
5
s
3
5
5
3
5
$
3
s
5
5
5
5
5
$
5
5
$

88,594.42
5,400.00
6,034.40

26,000.00

12,364.37
1,191.07

158.96
139.50
8,300.00
102.47
716.02
3,795.00
1,800.75

26,980.69

19,499.75
2,604.92

273.85
201.35
244,395.54

14,989.92
6,869.90

33,573.00

30,460.17
5,408.15
1,286.22
1,692.37
8,702.61
1,000.00
1,500.00
3,539.80
6,787.66
7,075.51

42,423.23

18,737.50
3,354.40
6,000.00

500.00
795.72
3,900.00
647,149.22

41.00

0.00
24.60

0.00
43.80
43.30
47.00

7.00

0.00
31.70
15.80
38.90
26.50
40.00
22.00
25.60
96.10
26.80
32.30

0.10
19.20
25.40
13.00
32.40
28.50
15.40
33.10

0.00

0.00
45.50
28.60
29.20
34.70
46.50
16.10

0.00

0.00
33.70

0.00
31.60



The Massachusetts 2025-2027
Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan

Executive Summary
Apnl 30, 2025

WE ARE MASS SAVE®:

«‘ Berkshire
Gas

An Avangrid company

EVERS=URCE

fr Liberty: nationalgrid < Unitil

MassSave.com



INntroduction

-“*-v:- i B e,

The Massachusetts Program Administrators (PAs)' are proud to submit the 2025-2027 Energy
Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan (Plan).2 This $4.5 billion investment, including $1.78 billion
in equity-related investment, represents a significant step toward the achievement of the
Massachusetts 2030 climate goals for the building sector and in support of our efforts to ensure
that residents and businesses across the Commonwealth benefit from the Mass Save® programs.

To accomplish these outcomes, we are introducing a set of bold, new solutions designed to
improve the customer experience and reduce barriers that impact participation, particularly for
underserved communities and customers. The collaboratively developed activities and offerings
within the Plan represent a meaningful commitment to equity and distributive justice and to
continuous improvement through learning and engagement. We are deeply grateful to the Energy
Efficiency Adviscry Council (EEAQ), including the Equity Working Group (EWG), the Department
of Energy Resources {(DOER), the Attorney General’'s Office (AGO), the public, our implementation
and community partners, and our trade allies for their feedback and support in developing the
Plan and without whom implementation of the Mass Save programs would not be possible. We
look forward to continued collaboration as we work to implement these efforts. We also thank
the Department of Public Utilities (Department)® for their commitment to ongoing regulatory
supervision and guidance.

1 The PAs are: The Berkshire Gas Company. Cape Light Compact JPE {the Compaci). N5TAR Electric Company, NSTAR Gas Company. and Eversaurce
Gas Company of Massachusetts. each d/b/a Eversource Energy, Liberty Utilities Corp. (Mew England Natural Gas Company) d/b/a Liberty, Massachusetts
Electric Company, Nantucket Electric Company, Boston Gas Company, each d/b/a National Grid. and Fitchburg Gas & Electric Light Company d/b/a Unitit
Tha Prograrmn Adrministrators may be referred to as the "PAs”, the "Massachusetts PAs”, ar the "Program Administrators” throughout this document,

2 The 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan may be referred to as the "2025-2027 Plan”, the "Three-Year Plan”, or the “Plan” throughout
this document.

3 The Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities may be referred to as the "Department,” “DPU," or "D.P.U" throughout this docurnent.

2 Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarborization Plan Executive Summary



By the Numbers

The 2025-2027 Plan builds on more than two decades of customer investment in energy
efficiency and electrification in the Commonwealth. These nation-leading programs

support approximately 76,000 high-quality, energy efficiency and electrification jobs in
Massachusetts.®

What We’ve Done What We’re Going To Do

Since 2013, we have: Undler the 2025-2027 Plan, we airm to:

Support the installation of heat pumps in
an additional 87,000 households, including
over 21,800 low- and moderate-income
households and more than 13,000 rental

Supported the installation of heat pumps
in over 75,000 homes and businesses
(since 2019), including 6,100 low-income
households.

units.
Weatherize more than 163,000 homes,
Weatherized approximately 350,000 homes, including over 69,000 low- and moderate-
including 70,000 low-income households income households and more than 49,000
rental units.
Reduced greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
by 3.7 million metric tons of carbon dioxide Reduce GHG emissions by 864,000 metric
v equivalent (CO.g), the same as taking tons of CO.e.
800,000 cars off the road for a year.
Delivered over 153 million megawatt-hours
(MwWh) and 4.7 billion therms in energy Deliver 8.2 million MWh and 1.0 billion therms
X savings, equivalent to the average annual in energy savings and $12.1 billion in total
Q output of five Brayton Point power plants, benefits to customers, including more than
as well as $31 billion in total benefits to $4.1 billion in equity benefits.

customers.

Invest $1.78 billion in equity-related efforts,
including $1.2 billion in incentives paid for
low- and moderate-income customers and
over $592 million for renters,

Invested $11 billion in improvements that
lower energy bills and improve health, safety,
and comfort for low-income households.

®

A
-+
0

Provide over $3.0 billion in customer

+~o Provided $6.7 billion in customer incentives. : :
incentives.

<7
>

7 Massachusetts Clean Energy Center, 2023 Massachusetts Clean Energy Industry Report,” at 17

Massachuseits 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary 3



How We Are Going To Do It

Reduce greenhouse gas emissions

1. Drive electrification of new and existing buildings, including by supporting installation of
heat pumps in 87.000 homes

2. Woeatherize over 164,000 homes and small businesses, including significant enhancements
to help small businesses access and benefit from available programs

3. Support GHG reductions for commercial and industrial (C&I) customers via
decarbonization planning and existing building commissioning

4. ldentify new measures and innovative approaches specifically designed to reduce GHG
emissions in commercial buildings

5. Introduce a coordinated approach to joint electrification funding and customer
engagement between electric and gas PAs

6. Reduce the costs of the programs to customers by pursuing outside funding and other
cost control measures

Accelerate program access for vulnerable and underserved

customers

1. Increase electrification and continue to expand access to weatherization for low-income
customers

2. Increase moderate-income customer participation by reducing barriers to qualification,
expanding the offer to moderate-income renters (in addition to homeowners), eliminating
out-of-pocket costs for weatherization and electrification, resolving health and safety
barriers, and improving the customer experience

3. Increase participation for residential renters and rental properties, with a particular focus
on designated equity communities

4. Expand participation pathways for small business renters, leased properties and landlords

5. Support energy efficiency and electrification improvements in schools across the
Commonwealth, with a particular focus on underserved communities

6. Continue to partner and invest in communities as a foundational strategy for reaching
underserved customers

7. Enhance support for customers who prefer to be served in a language other than English
(LOTE customers)®

" A person who prefers 1o be served in a language other than English, or LOTE customer, refers to any individual who speaks, reads, writes, or understands
a non-English language and has a language access need. The term LOTE is growing in usage within the language access industry and was identified as a
preferred termn by people who self-identify as such. We will utilize "LOTE customer” throughout this Flan gocument in lieu of the previously used terms of
non-English speakers, English-isclated customers, and Limited English Proficiency.

4 Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



Deliver an improved customer experience

1.  Provide holistic, multilingual support for all customers via creation of a statewide contact
center

2. Ensure timely rebate processing and continuous improvement in the rebate processing
experience

3. Improve the customer experience for electrification, starting with low- and moderate-
income customers and renlers in designated equity communities

4. Standardize the C&| custom project pathway tools and requirements to creale a
consistent customer experience

5. Investin digital enhancements and improved reporting

Strengthen and expand the workforce

1. Collaborate with the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center to expand the workforce,
doubiling annual funding to $24 million per year

2. Broaden our pool of gualified suppliers, including through adoption of an aspirational
benchmark to spend 15% of dollar volume of direct Mass Save contracts with diverse
suppliers

3. Expand and strengthen a robust heat pump installation workforce via the Heat Pump
Instailler Network and ensure delivery of high-quality installations in both homes and
businesses via contractor management and training®

4. Expand C&l training cpportunities, with a focus on integrating building controls and
electrification

6 The PAs will not use the benchmark as a means to preference or disadvantage certain suppliers based on race, gender, or sexuality in our individual
procurement decisions. The benchmark is aspirational and expressly does not require a certain percentage of spending or quota be spent on diverse
suppliers,

Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Surnmary g



What's New?

Major enhancements for the 2025-2027 Plan include:

Decarbonization

» Redesigned Home Energy Assessments that
provide customers with recommendations and
opportunities for pursuing decarbonization of
their homes,

« A simplified customer experience to drive greater
adoption of electrification through a managed
delivery option for installation of heat pumps,
starting first with moderate-income customers
and renters in designated equity communities.

Equity

» Continuation of expanded eligibility criteria for
moderate-income customers by considering both
state and area median income and by extending
moderate-income offers to income-gualified
renters.

» Increased barrier mitigation and electrificaticn
support for moderate-income customers and
renters in designated equity communities, which
will include a managed delivery model to reduce
or eliminate out-of-pocket costs and reduce
the time commitment required of customers. To
protect these customers against increased energy
burdens, electrification support will focus on
conversion of oil, propane, and electric resistance
heating systems.

= Significant expansion of efforts to drive low-
income electrification. In collaboration with
DOER, approximately $72 million in federal
inflation Act Reduction funding to support
electrification of low- and moderate-income
customers.

* Accelerated delivery of weatherization and
electrification improvements to low-income
customers by expanding the list of qualified
vendors and providing standalone income
verification services,

Customer Experience

* Provision of multilingual, holistic customer
support for all residential customers and small
businesses through the launch of a statewide
contact center and continued expansion of a
statewide client services center for low-income
customers.

* Increased data transparency and reimagined
reporting.

New technical assistance offerings for commercial
customers o support near-term existing building
commissioning and long-term decarbonization
planning.

Incentives for new measures that produce
meaningful GHG savings for medium and large
commercial customers, such as refrigerant leak
mitigation and retrofits and behind-the-meter gas
leak mitigation.

Creation of a coordinated, statewide approach for
joint delivery and funding of electrification.

Increased funding and data access for
Community First Partners.

Targeted support for decarbonization of schools
across the Commonwealth with a focus on
underserved communities,

Enhanced support for LOTE customers by
working to provide comprehensive language
access support throughout the customer journey.

Collaboration with the Massachusetts Clean
Energy Center to expand the workforce, doubling
annual funding to $24 million per year.

Increased incentive support for small non-profits
and small business renters.

Efforts to broaden our pool of qualified suppliers,
including through establishment of an aspirational
benchmark to spend 15% of the dollar volume of
direct contracts with diverse suppliers,

Changes to the HEAT loan and the adoption of
declining incentives to reduce the costs of the
programs and free up funding to address equity
priorities.

Standardization of technical support for
commercial customers.

Enhanced focus on comprehensive projects for
small businesses and ensuring all opportunities
are identified during energy assessments.

Streamlining the small business customer
experience by ensuring contracted vendors can
serve both the electricity and gas needs of a
customer.

[ Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



Reduce greenhouse gas emissions

The Global Warming Sclutions Act, as amended, establishes a stalewide goal to achieve net zero GHG
emissions by 2050 and reduce GHG emissions at least 50 percent below 1990 levels by 20307 To help
accomplish these goals, the 2030 Clean Energy and Climate Plan aims to reduce GHG emissions from
residential and commercial heating and cooling equipment by weatherizing and electrifying buildings. The
2030 Clean Energy and Climate Plan recognizes the importance of the Mass Save programs to achieving
this transition. Consistent with statewide efforts and the requirements of the Global Warming Solutions Act,
the Secretary of Energy and Environmental Affairs (EEA Secretary) has established a GHG reduction goal
for the 2025-2027 Plan of 1.0 million metric tons of CO,e® The PAs filed a plan on October 31, 2024 that
was constructed to achieve the Secretary's GHG reduction goal. To address the challenges arcund energy
affordability in the winter of 2024-2025, the Department modified and approved the Plan, as authorized

by statute, to reduce the residential sector budget by $500 million, while preserving "as many of the GHG
reductions and equity aspects of the Three-Year Plans as practicable.”® The PAs submitted a revised Plan to
the Department on April 30, 2025, which meets these requirements.”®

We aim to deliver these GHG reductions through six key strategies:
1. Drive electrification of new and existing buildings, including by
supporting installation of heat pumps in 87,000 homes

The 2022 Climate Act reinforced our decarbonization efforts by requiring the phase-out of support and
incentives for fossil fuels under the Mass Save programs, except in extremely limited situations.”

The Plan makes electrification the default solution for all residential customers, where possible, and a
cornerstone for achieving planned GHG reductions. To support these efforts, we will redesign Home Energy
Assessments to provide customers with recommendations and opportunities to pursue decarbonization of
their homes. In addition to supporting electrification of space and hot water heating and appliances (e.g.,
induction stoves, clothes dryers), assessments will aiso help inform customers about electrical upgrades
required to support electriftcation, as well as opportunities to adopt electric vehicle charging and onsite
renewable energy

in the previcus term, we laid the foundation for transforming the heating and cooling market by supporting
the development of an ecosystern of heal pump installation contractors, manufacturers, and distributors
necessary to support this work in the Commonwealth. In the 2025-2027 term, we will continue to build

and strengthen this ecosystem with the goal of installing heat pumps in 87,000 housing units, including

over 21,800 low- and moderate-income homes and more than 13,000 rental units. To improve the customer
experience and reduce barriers to adoption, we will develop a managed (or “turnkey”) solution for residential
customers who want to install heat pumps without having to identify and select a contractor themselves.
Under this approach, customers will have the option to work with a single vendor provided through the
programs to pursue weatherization, barrier mitigation, and electrification upgrades for their home. The
vendor will manage each step of the process and the various subcontractors. Initially, we plan to start with
rmoderate-income customers and renters in designated equity communities and then expand to market-rate
customers near the end of the three-year term. We anticipate that the creation of this turnkey offering will
help manage customers’ costs associated with decarbonization by creating a competitively priced alternative.

"See Acts of 2008. c. 298 (Global Warming Solutions Act) as amended by Acts of 2012, ¢. 209: Acts of 2018, ¢ 227 § 20 Acts of 2021, . 8; Acts of 2022, c.
179.

B See EEA Secretary's Letter to the Program Administrators establishing a GHG emissions reduction requirement for Mass Save 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency
Plans, Mar. 1, 2024

?See G.L.c. 25, & 21(d)(2).

¥ To the PAs' knowledge after careful review, the Plan, as approved by the Drepariment in its Three-Year Plan Order. complies with al! applicable laws and
regulations. To the extent a PA concludes that any provision of the Plan is in conflict with any applicable laws and regulations as may be in effect during the
2025-2027 Plan term, the PA will notify the Departrment that such provisions can no longer be applied as written and will, if practicable, seek to madify the
conflicting terms te ensure compliance. If it is not practical to modsfy the conflcting terms to ensure compliance with applicable law, the PA will notify the
Department that the provision can no longer be applied and cease performing or discontinue offering the noncompliant provision so that the PA continues
to comply with applicable laws and regulations.

" See An Act Driving Clean Energy and Offshore Wind, Acts of 2022, ¢. 179, § 26 (2022 Climate Act).

Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary 7



Additionally, we will provide the option for residential customers who choose to select their own installation
vendor to pre-approve their heat pump projects before installation. Pre-approval will help to ensure that
customers understand the eligibility requirements at the outset and install heat pumps that are subsequently
eligible for incentives. Separately, we will offer virtual decarbonization consultations to help customers make
informed decisions when they are considering installing a heat pump, including help comparing installation
quotes. Finally, we will redesign the Residential New Homes & Renovations program to make all-electric
construction the default option for new homes buift in the Commonwealth

2. Weatherize over 164,000 homes and small businesses, including
significant enhancements to help small businesses access and benefit from
available programs

Energy efficiency and weatherization are critical to reducing energy use and emissions, maintaining comfort,
and minimizing customers’ energy bills. Energy efficiency also provides the foundation to help manage

the system costs of electrification by minimizing the extent of infrastructure investrments resulting from

the transition to electric heating and cooling. In accordance with our enabling authority, we will continue

to pursue all available, cost-effective energy savings, with a primary focus on weatherization and building
envelope improvermentls for over 164,000 homes and small businesses

To drive adoption of weatherization in small businesses, we will bring in more weatherization vendors
through our Customer Directed Option and work to upskill the vendor community to identify and deliver
high-quality weatherization projects Additionally, we will streamline the process for weatherization vendors
by doing more prescriptive projects and making the custom projects easier to calculate with custom express
tools available to the contractor community. Lastly, we will support more small business weatherization
projects for customers who lease their facilities and for select nonprofit organizations by increasing
incentives.

3. Support GHG reductions for C&l customers via decarbonization planning
and existing building commissioning

We are committed to helping C&l customers decarbonize. As part of this Plan, energy assessments will cover
both energy efficiency and electrification to help customers develop decarbonization roadmaps for their
buildings. This strategy is focused on transitioning program participation from a widget, "plug and play”
model to a comprehensive, strategic, portfolio-wide approach to optimizing energy use in building systems.

We will also help drive savings for medium and large C&I customers by introducing enhanced support for
existing building commissioning. This effort will drive near-term savings by optimizing the performance
of existing controls and equipment, while identifying opportunities, through a variety of assessments or
engineering studies, to implement new capital measures such as control upgrades and building envelope
improvements.

8 Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



Additionally, we will introduce new services to support customers through portfolio-level assessments of
buildings and through enhanced support for facilities that must comply with GHG reduction ordinances
such as Boslon's Building Emissions Reduction and Disclosure Ordinance (BERDO), Cambridge's Building
Energy Use Disclosure Ordinance (BEUDO), and new statewide building energy reporting requirements

for all other buildings over 20.000 sguare feet. For cities and towns that need additional help setting and
meeting decarbonization goals in municipal buildings, we will offer financial support for communities to hire
a dedicated municipal energy manager

4. ldentify new measures and innovative approaches specifically designed
to reduce GHG emissions in commercial buildings

To help C&l customers advance further along the path to decarbonization, we will also incentivize measures
that will result in meaningful GHG savings. Examples of these types of measures include refrigerant leak
mitigation and retrofits and behind-the-meter gas leak mitigation. in certain building types, these GHG
reducing measures can be highly cost effective and can have shorter implementation cycles, helping
customers make immediate progress in reducing emissions.

5. Introduce a coordinated approach to joint electrification funding and
customer engagement between electric and gas PAs

We will implement a new statewide model to jointly fund and deliver prescriptive C&l and residential rebate
electrification projects that will simplify and improve the customer experience and ensure that funding is
available for customers of all fuel types who have an electric or gas account with at least one PA. Under
this model, we will have a single, statewide rebate processing vendor for all PAs and implement cross-PA
data sharing for customers of multiple PAs. This will reduce customer confusion and improve the customer
experience by ensuring that residential customers get to the right person quickly when they need guidance
or experience an issue with their rebate. This joint approach will also ensure that we can more seamlessly
market to and educate our customers on electrification, regardless of heating fuel type or overlapping
service territories.

We will incentivize new measures for C&l customers that will result

iIn meaningful GHG savings, such as refrigerant leak mitigation and
retrofits, and behind-the-meter gas leak mitigation.

This new model will also allow for equitable sharing and allocation of costs, savings, and GHG emissions
reductions between electric and gas PAs related to prescriptive electrification projects. This sharing will help
mitigate cost-effectiveness issues related to gas-to-electric conversions. For commercial customers, study
costs will also be shared, with reports housed in a central database accessible to both the electric and gas
PA.

Additionally, customer engagement for C&l custom electrification projects will be led by the electric PA—
eliminating the potential for overlapping cutreach and confusion in joint service territories. This approach
will also allow for equitable sharing and allocation of costs, savings, and GHG emissions reductions between
electric and gas PAs related to custom C&l electrification projects.

Massachusetis 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



N

6. Reduce the costs of the programs to customers by pursuing outside
funding and other cost control measures

We are acutely aware that the cost of this Plan is substantial and will continue to aggressively pursue oulside
funding and contain costs to support our decarbonization efforts and reduce the burden on customers,

The PAs will establish an outside funding working group with DOER, the AGO, and other key stakehotders

to identify and pursue additicnal sources of funding for the programs and program participants. Sources

of outside funding for the 2025-2027 term may include, but are not limited to, proceeds from the Regional
Greenhouse Gas Initiative auctions, revenues associated with participation in the Forward Capacity Market
administered by the Independent System Operator in New England, federal funding for weatherization and
emergency heating system replacements and repairs at low-income households, federal Inflation Reduction
Act funding for electrification of low- and moderate-income customers, and federal bipartisan Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act funding to install batteries for low- and moderate-income customers. The PAs also
look forward to working with DOER and the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center to explore opportunities for
co-delivery of solar with electrification in coordination with the Solar for All Initiative.

increases in the interest rate, along with the high cost of electrification improvements, have significantly
increased the costs of HEAT loans in the 2022-2024 term. In an effort to reduce HEAT loan costs, we have
reduced the loan cap to $25,000 per loan and created new, shorter loan terms for customers at higher
incomes. Through means testing, the PAs will ensure that lower-earning households can continue to access
the HEAT loan at a 0% interest rate over 7 years'2 We will also work to cross promote other financing
opportunities with the Massachusetts Climate Bank in order to reduce the number of HEAT Loans and
explore opportunities to negotiate an interest rate reduction with lenders relative to current levels and
consider the potential for establishing risk mitigation mechanisms (including, but not limited to, a loan loss
reserve) to help support such reductions. Further, we will also establish a stakeholder working group, which
includes the AGO, DOER, and the Council Consultant team, to explore options for bringing down HEAT loan
costs, including the potential for accessing outside capital.

Additionally, we have adopted a declining incentive structure for residential heat pump incentives over

the term with the goal of reducing prices paid by customers. As heat pumps achieve greater scale, we
anticipate that the cost of delivering heat pumps will decline. These reductions will help control costs and
free up budget for other equity-related Plan priorities. At the same time, we will also provide support for
greater price transparency for heat pump installation jobs through the creation of an enhanced heat pump
calculator—which should enable customers to choose the lowest cost offers that meet their needs.

We will also utilize managed pricing to help minimize the costs associated with the new turnkey heat pump
and barrier remediation delivery model and the expansion of no cost offers for moderate income customers
and renters in designated equity communities. Finally, we will continue our existing efforts to minimize costs,
including collaboration and sharing of resources, use of competitive procurements, and rigorous guality
control and inspection efforts.

We will work with DOER to leverage federal Inflation
Reduction Act funding for electrification of low- and

moderate-income customers.

2 The PAs will continue to offer a 7-year repayment term at 0% interest for households earning from 81% up to 135% of state median income ("SMI).
Customer households earning 135% up to 300% of 5MI and those earning above 300% of SMI will be eligble for 5-year and 3-year loan terms respectivaly at
a 0% interest rate.

10 Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



Accelerate program access for vulnerable and

underserved customers

—=L A ]
| P
LYk

Il; i

.«i‘p L

R R e

m—

iksseen

k' !

=
=%
Ve —

I E
mﬁf--'—'i %

In this Plan, we expand on our commitment to equity and incorporate distributive justice as a key element of
program design and implementation. Recognizing thal there can be multiple definitions and uses of these
terms, in the context of the decarbonization and energy efficiency services provided through the Mass Save
programs, we define ‘distributive justice' as a commitment to promoting fair and equitable distribution of
benefits and burdens across all customers, upholding and prioritizing the needs of historically underserved
customers burdened with economic challenges, discrimination, negative environmental impacts, and justice
disparities. For the 2025-2027 plan, we propose to invest $1.78 billion for energy efficiency and electrification
improvements for low-income customers' and underserved communities and customer groups, including
moderate-income customers, renters, LOTE customers, and small businesses, and deliver over $4.1 billion in
equity-related benefits. While we recognize that distributive justice is a work In progress, we believe that the
activities and offerings proposed within this Plan represent a strong and meaningful commitment to equity
and to continuous improvement. We are deeply grateful to all stakeholders, including the EWG, for their
time, efforts and engagement during the Plan development process and look forward to remaining engaged
with them during the coming term in order to meet the goals that we have laid out and to identify additional
improvements in promoting the fair and equitable distribution of the benefits of energy efficiency.

TTALBREINEH o/

Lt !l: llll"llllll””_ﬂ

|

¥
L]
qu

R N TTT T

For the 2025-2027 term, we aim to accelerate program access for vulnerable and underserved customers
through seven key strategies:

1. Increase electrification and continue to expand access to weatherization
for low-income customers

As the Commonwealth transitions towards high-efficiency electric heating., it is critical that low-income
customers—especially those that heat with delivered fuels—have an ocpportunity to electrify. In partnership
with the network of Community Action Program (CAP) agencies, we will continue to deliver programs at

no cost to low-income customers. We will also ensure that electrification is the default heating solution for
low-income customers that heat with electric resistance and delivered fuels because these are the situations
where electrification will not lead to increased energy burdens, Additionally, we will work with the Executive
Office of Housing and Livable Communities (EOHLC) to support gas-to-electric conversions for low-income
customers living in subsidized housing where utility aliowances are being adjusted to address the differential
costs between gas and electric heating and eliminate energy burden concerns for these customers.

Ovwver the 2025-2027 Plan, the PAs and their partner CAP agencies aim to weatherize over 43,000 low-
income homes and install heat pumps at more than 16,000 low-income housing units. This target represents

' Low-income customers are defined as those earning up to 60 percent of state median income and living in 1-4 family homes and those earning up to
B0 percent of area radian ncome and living in 5+ unit rmultifarmily buildings. Low-incorme custorners are also often referred (o in Mass Save program
documents as "inceme-eligible customers,” because they qualify for certain additional financial assistance. “Low-income” and “income-eligible” are used
interchangeably through this document to refer to these customers

Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



approximately 50 percent year-over-year growth in low-income heat pump installations during the term and
will require significant additional investment in weatherization and barrier mitigation to make these homes
electrification-ready. To improve the customer experience and reduce the time required to provide services
to this customer demographic, we will continue to support Action for Boston Community Development's
(ABCD's) operation of the LEAN Statewide Client Services Center and make available year-round income
qualification that is independent of the fuel assistance application process. Additionally, we will work with
EOHLC to expand automated data sharing on categorical eligibility, which will help to increase enrollment on
the discount rate and expand the number of customers eligible for services under the low-income programs.

To ensure that there is sufficient workforce to drive these increases in service, ABCD and Action, Inc. will
continue to leverage the capabilities and resources of contractors and vendors from the market rate program
across Eversource and National Grid territories to provide service within the low-income programs. L.ocal
CAP agencies will also increase capacity through additional staffing. The PAs, ABCD, and Action. Inc. will

also review and optimize workflow processes, including with these new vendors, to ensure that projects are
managed as efficiently as possible while also ensuring quality installations for this vulnerable customer group.

2. Increase moderate-income customer participation

Starting at the end of last term, we expanded the definition of “moderate-income” to consider both state and
area median income and made moderate-income offerings available te landlords whose tenants meet these
income qualifications. These changes will increase the number of customers eligible for our moderate-income
offerings and reduce barriers to program qualification by aligning with the criteria used for many federal and
state programs, such as rental assistance.

To reduce out-of-pocket costs and remove barriers to participation, we will offer no-cost weatherization,
barrier remediation, and electrification to moderate-income customers. These measures will be delivered

via a turnkey solution, streamlining the customer experience, ensuring guality installations, and managing
costs. To further reduce barriers to qualification, we also propose to continue allowing moderate-income
customers to gualify for no-cost weatherization by self-attesting to their household income and household
size Through these efforts, we aim to weatherize over 25,000 moderate-income housing units, and support
electrification of more than 5,000 moderate-income housing units across the state. To protect against
increasing moderate-income customer energy burdens, our electrification efforts will focus on customers
who heat with electric resistance, oil, and propane.

3. Increase participation for residential renters and rental properties, with a
particular focus on designated equity communities

To more comprehensively serve residential renters and rental properties, we will provide no-cost
weatherization, barrier remediation, and electrification for rental properties in designated equity communities
where electrification will not increase renters’ energy burdens’™ and automatically qualify all properties

with more than 50% rental units within these communities for the offer. This will include coordination of

(or "turnkey”) delivery of services to address time constraints, manage costs, and improve the customer
experience, as well as outreach to landlords. To help protect against increased energy burdens, landlords will
be reqguired to sign a form—similar to what is currently required in the low-income program—committing not
to raise rent or evict tenants for a period following the receipt of electrification incentives.

1 Moderate income customers will stifl be required to income verify in order to access no-cost barrier mitigation and electrification.

5 To protect renters against increased energy burdens, the PAs will limit the offer to electrification of rental units that displace delivered fuels and electric
resistance heating.

12 Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



We worked collaboratively with DOER and the EWG to establish the criteria and select designated equity
communitias for the 2025-2027 Plan. We selected communities in which: (13 more than 35 percent of the
population are renters; (2) there were greater than 8,000 renters; and (3) more than 50 percent of the
population are low- or moderate-income.® The process resulted in selection of 21 communities, including:
Boston, Brockton, Chelsea, Everett, Fall River, Framingham, Fitchburg, Lawrence, Lowell, Lynn, Malden, New
Bedford, Oak Bluffs, Pittsfield, Quincy, Revere, Salem, Springfield, Tisbury, Woburn, and Worcester!

Qulside of these communities, we will continue to provide rental units with no-cost weatherization and
enhanced incentives to mitigate pre-weatherization barriers. In total, the Plan includes a record investment of
over $592 million dedicated to serving renters.

4. Expand participation pathways for small business renters, leased
properties and landlords

We are designing new pathways to make it easier for small business renters and landlords to work together
on energy-saving projects. Since longer-term investments like heat pumps and weatherization involve
commitments from both renters and landlords, we will create new incentives and simplified processes to
benefit both parties. For landlords, we will launch a targeted engagement strategy to have more leased
buildings participate in our program and streamline the participation process, including oplions for managing
multiple accounts in one building, Renters will also have access to resources on a new Mass Save Renters
webpage, helping them approach their landlords about energy-efficient upgrades and understand the
available incentives. These efforts, which include a focus on LOTE customers, are designed to make energy
efficiency benefits accessible and attractive to both building tenants and owners.

5. Support energy efficiency and electrification improvements in schools
across the Commonwealth, with a particular focus on underserved
communities

We will work with DOER and other stakeholders to support energy efficiency and decarbonization
improvements at schools in underserved communities through two offerings. First, together with support
from other state agencies, we will help fully decarbonize five schools in underserved communities that will
serve as models for supporting a clean, equitable transition for our public schools. We will support DOER's
lead in selection of the five schools and help communities pursue other funding, such as the Massachusetts
School Building Authority's (MSBA) heat pump proegram and the Massachusetls Clean Energy Center Green
School Works grant. Second, the PAs will launch an offer to assist all participating K-12 schools on their
path to decarbonization. These efforts will include support for new municipal energy managers, grant-
writing support and enhanced incentives and technical assistance. In addition, the PAs will provide staff
and Mass Save K-12 teacher training, as well as student warkshops to integrate clean energy into learning
outcomes while engaging in building upgrades. The PA approach to school decarbonization acknowledges
the sometimes overlapping array of funding available for schools from different state entities and sources.
Alongside the leadership efforts of DOER, the PAs are collaborating with a cross-agency working group that
includes the Climate Office, MSBA, and the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center, to align program priorities
and offers, participation requirements, application processes and other logistics to ensure a streamlined
experience for accessing this much-needed decarbonization support.

® The Compact, which has a unique service territory, selected towns where (1) at least 28% of the population are renters and {2} 40% or more of the
population are low- or moderate-income.

7 Unitil, Berkshire Gas, and Liberty may further limit eligibility within these communities in their service territories by focusing on certain economically-
disadvantaged census blocks.

Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary 13



6. Continue to partner and invest in communities as a foundational strategy
for reaching underserved customers

The 2025-2027 Plan significantly strengthens our commitment to working with community partners by
deepening our efforts to provide multilingual, culturally sensitive outreach and engagement. This approach
i5 crucial in raising awareness and participation in energy efficiency programs, particularly in designated
equily communities with substantial populations of low- and moderate-income customers, renters, and
LOTE customers. In response to the recommendations from the EWG, we are increasing both the budget
and flexibility for Community First Partners (CFPs). This will enable CFPs to tailor their outreach strategies
more effectively, retain skilled staff, and design marketing initiatives that resonate deeply with their residents
and small business owners. We will also provide support and training for the CFP lead vendor and energy
advocates on small business incentives and opportunities to drive more small business assessments.

We recognize the unigque knowledge that these community-based organizations and municipalities

possess and are committed to empowering them further by enhancing data sharing between vendors

and communities, supporting more targeted outreach, and driving a significant increase in participation
among underserved groups. These initiatives bolster support for CFPs and are integral to our commitment
to distributive justice, ensuring that all communities have the opportunity to participate fully in the energy
efficient future that we are co-creating. This enhanced partnership model not only acknowledges the
importance of local expertise but is critical to delivering on the broader principles of distributive justice by
ensuring that the benefits of energy efficiency are more equitably distributed, particularly among those who
have historically been underserved. Additionally, through our Mass Save Community Education Grant, we will
continue to increase our community engagement, with a focus on underserved communities, through energy
efficiency education and literacy programs paired with marketing and training support. The 2025-2027 Plan's
equity initiatives, informed by the EWG, represent a concerted effort to address both new challenges and
ongoing needs,

7. Enhance support for LOTE customers

The Plan provides enhanced support for LOTE customers by improving language access throughout the
customer journey, including material translations, interpreter services, and multilingual staff. We worked with
vendors to develop language access strategies for residential and small business programs, starting with the
five most commonly spoken languages in Massachusetts other than English, including Spanish, Portuguese,
Mandarin, Cantonese, and Haitian Creole. These languages were identified based on the results of the study
as the area of greatest and most immediate need for enhancing language access support. The study and
recommendations were released in draft in June. We have committed to implementing the recommendations
and are working to operationalize them within the programs. CFPs will also provide additional language
support in communities where other languages are spoken. As part of these efforts, the LEAN Statewide
Client Services Center and the Mass Save Statewide Contact Center will be positioned to comprehensively
serve LOTE customers,

14 | Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



Deliver an improved customer experience

Currently, customers face challenges in accessing appropriate customer support resources to help them
understand the various options for decarbonizing their homes or small businesses, the steps required

to pursue them effectively, and how to efficiently access program supports and financial incentives.
These challenges can pose barriers to participation, ultimately limiting customer adoption of the building
decarbonization solutions critical to meeting the Commonwealth's climate and clean energy goals.

To drive the ambitious levels of customer adoption needed to meet the Commonwealth’s decarbonization
goals, we plan to implement new enhancements to streamiine the customer experience and lead to
increased pregram participation. Our objective is to deliver an improved customer experience through
five key strategies:

1. Provide holistic, multilingual support for all customers via creation of a
statewide contact center

To complement ABCD’s LEAN Statewide Client Services Center for low-income customers described above,
we will launch a new statewide contact center to provide comprehensive, multilingual support to residential
and small business customers statewide regarding all energy efficiency and electrification offerings. This
support will include guidance for customers at the beginning of their decarbonization journey who want
information on where and how to start and the range cf potential solutions available for their home or

small business. Our statewide contact center will also support those customers who already have a specific
objective in mind, such as electrification of their home, and want to know how they can access the Mass Save
programs to support their plans.

QOur statewide contact center will be staffed by program specialists who are knowledgeable on all Mass Save
offerings and who can assist with topics including program guidance, Home Energy Assessments, HEAT
Loans, the Massachusetts Climate Bank's Energy Saver Loan, decarbonization consuitations, relevant tax
credits or federal incentives, and the status of a rebate. Center staff will also be trained and equipped to help
customers access incentives outside of the Mass Save programs, such as incentives for electric vehicles and
distributed solar installations. Customers will be able to access these comprehensive resources via phone,
chat, and email.

Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Eff ciency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary 5



2. Ensure timely rebate processing and continuous improvement in the
rebate processing experience

We process approximately 300,000 rebates annually. To support this demand and create a faster rebate
process, we engaged a new rebate processing vendor as of July 1, 2023, and have worked very closely with
them to improve the process for customers. We understand the significant challenges posed to customers

by rebate processing delays last term and have actively worked to eliminate these issues and improve the
customer experience. Going forward, we will continue to improve the rebate processing experience, This
effort will include increasing the quality and completeness of submitted applications by creating an optional
pre-approval step for customers pursuing electrification to help ensure customers understand and comply
with each of the required components for successfully securing a rebate prior to submission of an application
form.

Additionally, we will continue to work with our rebate processing vendor to further reduce the number of
applications with missing information via enhancements to the online submission process and proactive
outreach to affected customers. This outreach is in addition to the automated notifications customers
already receive. We are also working to optimize and reduce the time required for inspections, while ensuring
appropriate levels of post-installation review. Finally, we are also working with our rebate processing vendor
to support digital payments, such as ACH payment and “digital checks.” Together, we expect these efforts

to continue improving the rebate experience while ensuring that installed heat pumps achieve the expected
energy savings and GHG reductions, and that customer dollars are prudently deployed.

3. Improve the customer experience for electrification, starting with
low- and moderate-income customers and renters in designated equity
communities

As already noted, we propose to improve the customer experience and eliminate out-of-pocket costs

by offering moderate-income customers and renters in designated equity communities with no-cost
weatherization, barrier remediation, and electrification, detivered via a turnkey approach. This approach

will be modeiled on our existing approach to weatherization, and our comprehensive delivery model to
low-income customers, enabling the programs to provide a facilitated project management experience

to customers for a broader range of offerings within decarbonization. By expanding the range of turnkey
offerings, 2-to-4-unit homes containing a mix of market-rate and low- and moderate-income customers will
be able to participate more effectively.

Based on our initial experience implementing a turnkey approach for moderate-income customers and
renters in designated equity communities, we will expand the turnkey electrification offering to market-
rate customers prior to the end of the 2025-2027 term. Through our partnership with the network of

CAP agencies and implementation partners, we will also continue to reduce the time to serve low-income
customers by deploying qualified vendors to areas where the local CAP agency's time to serve exceeds six-
to-eight weeks.

To drive the ambitious levels of customer adoption needed

to meet the Commonwealth’s decarbonization goals, we
plan to implement new enhancements to streamline the
customer experience and increase program participation.

|13 | Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



4. Standardize the C&l custom project pathway tools and requirements to
create a consistent customer experience

We will offer several enhancements to improve the experience of C&| customers and vendors participating in
the custom pathway. This includes standardizing savings calculation tools, engineering reguirements, project
documentation, and both pre- and post-installation inspections and savings validation processes across PAs.
These resources will be made available on a shared website available to all PA engineers and technical service
vendors. A central working group will oversee this alignment effort, to create a consistent experience for

C&I customers developing custom-designed projects, on an ongoing basis. A 2024 statewide solicitation for
technical service vendors will also help ensure we take a consistent approach to overseeing technical vendors
and further enable shared practices. New initiatives for comprehensive energy assessments, existing building
commissioning, and schools in equity communities will offer additional customer support in developing

more comprehensive projects. Finally, the PAs are exploring ways to make project information more readily
available to C&I customers,

5. Invest in digital enhancements and improved reporting

We will continue to enhance MassSave.com to expand electrification-related content, improve language
access, and foster an optimal user experience, This will include personalization enhancements to nurture
residential and C&l customers along their decarbonization journeys by providing the most relevant and
helpful content and information. The nef effect of the above-referenced strategies will lead to higher
customer satisfaction, increased speed and accuracy of rebate processing, improved customer support, and
ultimately, increased program participation.

The PAs are working in collaboration with DOER to provide the Council, the public, and interested
stakeholders with valuable and easy-to-understand information on the programs that help measure progress
toward our Plan goals. This information will include details on key measures such as weatherization jobs and
heat pumps installed across different customer types and communities; investments in low- and moderate-
income customers and in designated equity communities; and information on commercial projects such as
custom electrification and existing building commissioning projects. Further details are included in Section
5.4: Operational Metrics and Key Performance Indicators.

Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Surnmary | 17



Strengthen and expand the workforce

The success of the 2025-2027 Plan and ultimately the Commonwealth’s ability to meet its net zero
commitments are dependent on having a workforce capable of providing energy efficiency, decarbonization,
and demand response services. Over the last decade, the energy efficiency workforce in Massachusetts

has grown over 86 percent and now directly supports approximately 76,000 good paying green collar

jobs. Despite this rapid growth, we acknowledge the gaps in supporting and cultivating a workforce that is
reflective of the communities we aim to serve. To this end we recognize that a stable, trained, diverse, and
adaptable labor pool is essential to the continued growth and success of our programs,

To meet this need, we are pursuing several strategies to expand and diversify a robust workforce. These
efforts are designed to help us meet ambitious building efficiency, energy savings, and decarbonization
goals with a workforce that reflects the diversity of the communities and customers we serve. Our four key
strategies to strengthen and diversify the workfarce are described below:

1. Collaborate with the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center to expand the
workforce, doubling annual funding to $24 million per year

We will work collaboratively with the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center over the 2025-2027 term to
expand the workfaorce, doubling annual funding to $24 million per year, Areas of focus will include training
for contractors and iob seekers who prefer to be served in a language other than English and creation of

a “contractor development pathway” to provide interested contractors with business development and
other essential support. The PAs and the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center hope that this “contractor
development pathway” will enable additional, qualified contractors to participate successfully in the supplier
ecosystem for energy efficiency and electrification. The Massachusetts Clean Energy Center will also provide
regular reporting to the EEAC and the Department on their efforts, including through key performance
indicators. This will help ensure that the $72 million in customer funds transferred from the Mass Save
programs to the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center are designed o support the equity-related workforce
needs of the programs, that new trainees and businesses are given opportunities, as available, within the
network of Mass Save contractors and vendors upon completion of their training, and that we ultimately
succeed in creating a workforce that better represents the communities in which they serve.

In addition to collaborating with the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center, we will also continue to support
several complementary efforts. These include: (1) offering the Mass Save Workforce Training Grant, which
seeks to increase the sustainability of the energy efficiency workforce by upskilling and transitioning new
workers into the workforce through partnership development and grant funding; and (2) for Eversource
and National Grid specifically, training new candidates, with an emphasis on those from underserved
communities, through the Clean Energy Pathways program.

18 Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



2. Broaden our pool of qualified suppliers, including through adoption of an
aspirational benchmark to spend 15% of dollar volume of direct Mass Save
contracts with diverse suppliers

We will also work to broaden our pool of qualified suppliers within the Mass Save programs. As a new effort
and informed by the Council's recommendations, the PAs will set an aspirational benchmark® to spend 15%
of dollar volume of direct Mass Save contracts with diverse suppliers for the 2025-2027 Term. To achieve a
broader pool of qualified suppliers, we will work diligently to build the pipeline of diverse suppliers, support
them in responding to requests for proposals (RFPs), and establish new metrics, to be reported annually,

so that we can measure progress towards this benchmark. Separately, the PAs will invite our contractor
community to indicate their diverse business status through regular surveys and make relevant data available
to communities and interested customers, including on MassSave.com.

Additionally, we are committing to increase diverse supplier participation by: (1) publicly posting notice of
opportunities and reaching out proactively to invite qualified and interested suppliers, including diverse
suppliers, to respond to competitive RFPs; (2) communicating with diverse and interested suppliers on
opportunities to work with the PAs through annual Supplier Engagement Summits; (3) facilitating quarterly
and RFP-specific matchmaking opportunities to connect diverse and interested suppliers with lead vendors;
(4) creating and funding a vendor network to help coordinate upcoming RFP opportunities and share best
practices among diverse and interested suppliers.

3. Expand and strengthen a robust heat pump installation workforce

via the Heat Pump Installer Network and ensure delivery of high-quality
installations in both homes and businesses via contractor management and
training

We will continue to develop an extensive network of heat pump installers who go through a qualification
process in order to participate in the Mass Save programs. Training requirements for heat pump installers
ensure that customers receive a quality heat pump installation. Over the 2025-2027 term, we will continue

to expand our Heat Pump Installer Network and strengthen training requirements. Cur Heat Pump Installer
Network will provide the foundation for the development of a turnkey electrification pathway for moderate-
income and market-rate customers. It will also be leveraged to expand electrification in our small commercial
buildings. As small businesses across the Commonwealth seek resources to support their decarbonization
goals, the PAs will continue to expand commercial installer participation in the Heat Pump installer Network.

Finally, we are constantly evaluating the contractors who participate in the Mass Save programs and
contractors who do nol satisfy program requirements can be excluded from participating. To ensure
excellence in program delivery and to help contractors succeed, we will provide training opportunities,
including no-cost virtual trainings that are available 24/7 through our Mass Save Heating & Cooling Learning
Center. These trainings have been created to address the design and installation of heat pumgpg systems in
both residential and commercial buildings.

® The PAs will not use the benchmark as a means to preference or disadvantage certain suppliers based on race, gender, or sexuality in our individua
procurement decisions, The benchmark is aspirational and expressly does not require a certain percentage of spending or quota be spent on diverse
suppliers

Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary 19



4. Expand C&! training opportunities, with a focus on integrating building
controls and electrification

We will expand the quantity and range of training courses available, with dedicated staff to support these
efforts, Our focus areas for additional C&l trainings will include electrification, weatherization, heat recovery,
building controls, energy auditing, and building commissioning. While the majority of these trainings will
target system designers and installers, many will also benefit facility managers and staff. We will also
collaborate with DOER to update and expand energy code trainings for architects, engineers, and builders
in response to recent changes to Massachusetts building and stretch codes, as well as cutting-edge

design practices. We will design these training opportunities, focused on integrating building controls and
electrification, to help equip our local workforce with the skill sets needed to serve C&| customers and meet
their decarbonization goals.

Finally, we have established relationships with local instituticns and industry organizations to foster
workforce development in the C&l sector. These relationships will result in training that is structured to
introduce the latest technologies and arm training participants with an understanding of how to identify
opportunities to implement the technologies, enumerate their benefits, and leverage relevant PA funding
and resources. We also partner with the Northwest Energy Efficiency Council to offer Building Operator
Certification, which elevates building operators’ capabilities through training in energy efficiency and smart
building technologies, continued education, and certification.

To ensure excellence in program delivery and to help
contractors succeed, we will provide training opportunities,
including no-cost virtual trainings that are available 24/7
through our Mass Save Heating & Cooling Learning Center.

20 Massachusetts 2025-2027 Energy Efficiency and Decarbonization Plan Executive Summary



W

mass save

Savings through energy efficiency

—t N ; e |
| e L1
:—qi‘ﬁ"i S e “\:“~-_JL

] |
e

WE ARE MASS SAVE®:

«‘ Berkshire
Gas

An Avangrid company

EVERSSURCE

Liberty: nationalgrid < Unitil

Learn more at MassSave.com



